
___ 1 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

DESOTO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

JESSIE MEDLIN, PRESIDENT, 2012 PRESIDING 
 

February 21, 2012 
 
 
A.  CALL TO ORDER 

 
The February 21, 2012 meeting of the DeSoto County Board of Supervisors was called to 
order by Supervisor Jessie Medlin, Board President. 

 
Deputy Carl Hurt of the DeSoto County Sheriff’s Department was present and did open the 
DeSoto County Board of Supervisors meeting in a regular session to hear all business to 
come before the Board.  The following were present: 

  
       Supervisor Jessie Medlin----------------------District 1 
   Supervisor Mark Gardner---------------------District 2   
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------------District 3  
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------------District 4  

   Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------------District 5    
   W. E. Sluggo Davis----------------------------Chancery Clerk 
   Michael Garriga---------------------------------County Administrator 
   Jody Neyman ------------------------------------Board Attorney 
   Sheriff Bill Rasco-------------------------------Sheriff 
 
 

B.  INVOCATION 
 

Supervisor Mark Gardner presented the invocation. 
 

 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
D.  CITIZEN REMARKS 
 

 Mr. Joe Thompson appeared before the Board of Supervisors and said the City of Hernando 
did not discuss the work on Sidewinder Road at their last meeting.  Mr. Thompson said he is 
asking the Board of Supervisors to bring Sidewinder Road up for another vote.   
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner seconded the motion 
to make the repairs on Sidewinder Road inside the City of Hernando.  The motion passed by 
a vote as follows:           
           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 

      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------NO 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------NO 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

Supervisor Bill Russell said he voted against this motion because it sets a negative precedent 
that this Board has never done before.   
 
 

E.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked if there was anyone present who wished to add or delete 
items to the Agenda. 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin requested to add the policy for employee use of County vehicles. 



___ 2 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

 
Supervisor Bill Russell asked that Crimestoppers be added to the Agenda. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell asked about the letter from Judge Percy Lynchard regarding 
reduction in pay for Special Masters and asked if a Board of Supervisors’ vote is required.  
County Administrator Michael Garriga said no, that is an adjustment made by judicial order. 
 Judge Lynchard changed the Special Masters’ pay from a case by case basis to a salaried 
basis to control their costs. 
 
County Administrator Garriga said that item number six on the Consent Agenda involving 
the Roadside Herbicide bid revision should be moved to New Business where it is more 
appropriate for Board action. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked if contracts are on the Agenda two times in error.  County 
Administrator Michael Garriga said the contracts in Old Business are the ones previously 
presented to the Board for consideration and the ones in New Business are contracts that 
occurred since the original list was presented. 
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell asked to add the Public Information Officer in Executive Session 
under Personnel. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Bill Russell seconded the motion 
to approve the Agenda with changes as requested.  The motion passed by a vote as follows: 
          
           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 

      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

1.  Crimestoppers 
 
Board Attorney Jody Neyman stated that after reviewing the law and options outlines in 
Mr. Nowak’s memorandum to the Board regarding the issue that the best alternative for 
the Board to consider with Crimestoppers would be for the County to meet with 
Crimestoppers to discuss the issues and see if it can be resolved by agreement.  Mr. 
Neyman said if that does not work out, the County could ask the state Crimestoppers to 
intervene and help to resolve the issue.  Mr. Neyman said to fund the Crimestoppers 
program; the County has the statutory discretionary authority to order the Justice Court to 
charge up to a 2.00 assessment.  He stated that presently, as a result of local and private 
legislation, the County only has a $1.00 assessment for Crimestoppers, and since it is 
discretionary the Board can terminate the assessment by Order if it chooses. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner commended Mr. Nowak for sending the information to the 
Board informing them of options in the matter.  Supervisor Gardner said that he has 
spoken to Crimestoppers and Sheriff Rasco and based upon those conversations, there is 
interest on both sides to work out the issues.  Supervisor Gardner said before any action is 
taken, he would like to set up a meeting with the Sheriff and Crimestoppers to discuss the 
issues and he would like to attend the meeting and invite Supervisor Lee Caldwell to 
attend as well. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Bill Russell seconded the 
motion to appoint Supervisor Lee Caldwell and Supervisor Mark Gardner as the 
committee to work with Crimestoppers and the Sheriff’s Department.  The motion passed 
by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 



___ 3 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

F.  CONSENT  
 
The Board of Supervisors considered the items on the Consent Agenda. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell spoke regarding Unified Waste Systems that runs the Starlanding 
Rubbish Pit is adopting a road.  He said they agreed a couple of years ago to keep the area 
between Wilson Mill Road and Highway 61 clean.  Supervisor Russell said the Agenda 
indicates they want to adopt the section of Starlanding Road starting at the intersection of 
Baldwin Road and west to Wilson Mill Road and that is short of their original commitment.  
He said he would like to remove this item and see if they will change it to Highway 61. 
 
Road Manager Russell Dorris said they intend to keep the entire area clean. 
 
Supervisor Russell asked that item F.5.b on the Consent Agenda be revised for Starlanding 
Rubbish Pit to adopt Starlanding Road between the intersection of Baldwin Road and west of 
Highway 61. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner asked if the agreements for Olive Branch and Walls are renewals 
or new agreements.  Board Attorney Jody Neyman said the agreements are renewals.   
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked if the fees for Starlanding Rubbish Pit are the same as the 
other rubbish pits.  Environmental Services Manager Ray Laughter said the fees are slightly 
less. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the 
motion to approve the Consent Agenda as follows and to move the bid for roadside herbicide 
to New Business: 
 
1.  Environmental Services:  Proposed Pricing from Unified Waste Systems for Rubbish 

Disposal at Starlanding Rubbish Pit 
2.  Office of Finance and Accounting 
 

a. Budget Amendments 
 

b. Funds Forfeiture:  Special Investigation Division 
 
Case #          Defendant     Date Seized Receipt # Amount  Date of 

Forfeiture 
DC-06-0077      Genaro   
 Ibbara 
 
Transfer from Sheriff- Seized Fund  (123-000-139) $4,433.00 
Transfer to Sheriff-Forfeiture Fund  (120-000-238) $4,433.00 
 
 c. Inventory Dispositions – Final:  Sheriff’s Department/Special  
Investigative Division  
 



___ 4 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

ASSET # DESCRIPTION SERIAL #

REASON FOR 

DISPOSAL

LOCATION AT 

PRELIMINARY

PRELIMINARY 

APPROVAL 

DATE

DISPOSED OF 

BY

LOCATION OF 

FINAL DISPOSAL

30298 DOGDE 1999 RAM TRUCK 2B5WB35ZXK524265 SURPLUS SHERIFF DEPT 11/07/11 BR AUCTION

32284 FORD 2000 CROWN VIC 2FAFP71WXYX146264 SURPLUS SHERIFF DEPT 11/07/11 BR AUCTION

31168 FORD 2002 TAURUS 1FAFP52UX2A190721 SURPLUS SHERIFF DEPT 11/07/11 BR AUCTION

34037 FORD 2001 CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W11X160740 SURPLUS SHERIFF DEPT 11/07/11 BR AUCTION

36451 FORD 2003 CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W53X206265 SURPLUS SHERIFF DEPT 11/07/11 BR AUCTION

36438 FORD 2003 CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W03X206254 SURPLUS SHERIFF DEPT 11/07/11 BR AUCTION

32299 FORD 2003 CROWN VIC 2FAHP71W03X168727 SURPLUS SHERIFF DEPT 11/07/11 BR AUCTION

33932 FORD 2004 CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W84X161162 SURPLUS SHERIFF DEPT 11/07/11 BR AUCTION

34044 FORD 2002 CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W72X121006 SURPLUS SHERIFF DEPT 11/07/11 BR AUCTION

33148 FORD 2001 CROWN VIC 2FAFP71WX1X153916 SURPLUS SHERIFF DEPT 11/07/11 BR AUCTION

39513 2001 NISSIAN EXTERRA 5N1ED28T51C514152 Forfeiture‐Auction SID Lot 12/05/12 BR AUCTION

41099 2000 MAZDA 626 !YVGF22C6Y512122 Forfeiture‐Auction SID Lot 12/05/12 BR AUCTION

41098 1994 GMC SUBURBAN 1GKGC26K3RJ770120 Forfeiture‐Auction SID Lot 12/05/12 BR AUCTION

41607 2000 Chevy TRAILBLAZER 1GNDT13W5Y2363318 Forfeiture‐Auction SID Lot 12/05/12 BR AUCTION

41759 1993 CHYSLER NEW YORKER 1C3XV66R4PD118987 Forfeiture‐Auction SID Lot 12/05/12 BR AUCTION

41718 1995 FORD TAURUS 1FALP52U3SA278559 Forfeiture‐Auction  SID Lot 01/03/12 BR AUCTION

41776 1992 MERCURY MARQUIS 2MECM74WXNX610682 Forfeiture‐Auction  SID Lot 01/03/12 BR AUCTION

41784 2002 CHRYSLER CONCORD 2C3HD36MX2H154480 Forfeiture‐Auction  SID Lot 01/03/12 BR AUCTION

41719 1998 FORD F150 1FTZF1726WKB07652 Forfeiture‐Auction  SID Lot 01/03/12 BR AUCTION

41766 1997 MERCURY MARQUIS 2MELM75W7VX620066 Forfeiture‐Auction  SID Lot 01/03/12 BR AUCTION

34927 1996 ACURA RL JH4KA965XTC012171 Forfeiture‐Auction  SID Lot 01/17/12 BR AUCTION

41767 1993 PLYMOUTH VOYAGER 2P4GH25KXPR180449 Forfeiture‐Auction  SID Lot 01/17/12 BR AUCTION  
 

3.  Establish as Part of the Formal Record and Enter Into the Minutes  
 

a. Resolution and Interlocal Agreement for DeSoto County to Assist the Town of 
Walls with Animal Control Enforcement 

 
b. Resolution and Interlocal Agreement between DeSoto County and the City of 
Olive Branch for the use of the DeSoto County Animal Shelter 
 
c. Resolution and Interlocal Agreement between DeSoto County the Short Fork 
Creek Watershed Drainage District and the DeSoto County Regional Utility 
Authority for Repairs and Improvements to Certain Flood and Drainage  
Control Measures 
 
d. Memorandum of Understanding between DeSoto County and Horn Lake for Cost 
Sharing of Certain Road Improvements within City Limits of Horn Lake 
 
e. Original Agreement between DeSoto County and Missouri Highway Patrol 
Authorizing the Sheriff’s Department to Purchase Vehicles from the Missouri State 
Highway Patrol 
 

4.  Board Attorney:  Approve Resolution and Interlocal Agreement for DeSoto County 
to Maintain Public Roads and Provide Certain Engineering Services on Behalf of 
the Town of Walls 
 

5.  Department of Road Management 
 
  a. Monthly Safety Report    
 
 b. Adopt-A-Road Program:  Starlanding Road Rubbish Pit-Starlanding Road 

Between the Intersection of Baldwin Road to West to Highway 61(amended) 
Unified Waste Systems, 630 Whitfield Drive, Hernando, MS 
 

 c. Maintenance Request of School Bus Turnaround for School Year 2011 – 2012 
Location   Bus #  Owner  Phone 
12885 Fairview Rd. W.  446  Teresa Bynum 901-361-5399 
Byhalia, MS 
 

6.  Office of Procurement:  Roadside Herbicide Bid Revision – Vendor  
Withdrew Bid/Quote – Moved to New Business 

 
7.  Chancery Clerk’s Office:  Allowances (2)    $1,350.00 $1,966.66  



___ 5 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

The motion passed by a vote as follows:           
           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------NO 

      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
See Exhibit F 
 

 
G.  OLD BUSINESS   

 
1.  Consideration of Agreement for Legislative Services related to Radar Legislation 
 

County Administrator Michael Garriga said the letter of agreement has been drafted for 
the services of Irb Benjamin for legislation related to the Sheriff’s use of radar.  Mr. 
Garriga said the agreement calls for payment of $50.00 per hour with the cap set at 
$5,000.00 for Mr. Benjamin’s services. 
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee said he thought we were getting other counties. 
 
In response, Mr. Garriga stated that he understood that some other counties are pursing the 
issue on their own and he understood that there are several bills already out there.  He 
added that the Sheriff had an understanding that some of the other counties with a 
population of greater than 100,000 indicated that they wanted to participate. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell said no local and private legislation has yet been written regarding 
the issue, and he understood that if Mr. Benjamin is hired that the plan was to meet with 
him, the Desoto County Legislators and the County as well as other committee members 
in the House and Senate to see what they would support.  Supervisor Russell said, in the 
past, the Chairman of County Affairs said he would not support that legislation, but they 
were going to see if the issue was something that he could support.  Supervisor Russell 
said his past experience is that unless we have someone like Mr. Benjamin representing 
our interests in Jackson no progress will be made, and our delegation is ready to help us. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked how long they have to put in bills.  Mr. Garriga said local 
and private bills should be in by early March and regular legislation should be very soon.   
 
Supervisor Russell said we are talking about our children and their safety, and the County 

       needs to pursue the issue. 
 
Supervisor Gardner said he is not sure this is the avenue the Board should take.  He said 
he would go and talk to the people himself. 
 
Supervisor Medlin said he did not think we should pay lobbyists. 
 
Supervisor Gardner said he thinks the Board is for the Sheriff using radar in the cars. 
 
Supervisor Russell said we have not been successful in the past.  He said if we try the 
same way as before, we will get the same results so we need to hire Mr. Benjamin. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion to approve the letter of agreement with Irb 
Benjamin to retain him for lobbyist services for legislation related to the Sheriff’s use of 
radar.  The motion died for lack of a second. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the 
motion to have the County Administrator confer with the County’s Legislative Delegation 
to determine their support for legislation pertaining to the use of radar for Sheriff’s 
Departments in counties with a population greater than 100,000 and if there is support, 
authorize the County Administrator and the Smith, Phillips, Mitchell, Scott and Nowak 
Law Firm to draft proposed legislation.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:  
                  Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 



___ 6 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

      Supervisor Mark Gardner--------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell-----------------NO 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell---------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee-----------------YES 
 
See Exhibit G.1 
 
 

2.    Website Redevelopment Project   
 

a. Project Update and Proposal 
 

b. Consideration of Vendor Proposals and Authorization to Issue Purchase 
Requisition in excess of $25,000 

 
Information Technology Director John Mitchell said he brought information to the last 
Board Meeting regarding the design of a new web site.  He said the web site would be 
more fitting for communicating to the public. 
 
Mr. Mitchell said he had obtained quotes for the web site design.  He said one vendor 
did a web site for Germantown, TN and one vendor did a web site for Southaven, MS.  
Mr. Mitchell said both have a lot of other experience as well.  He said Civic Plus covers 
all of the phases and requested by the County.  Mr. Mitchell said the goal is to allow all 
county functions of the access to the web site.  He said this plan will transfer the 
responsibility to update the web site to the individual departments.   
 
Mr. Mitchell presented the quotes as follows: 
 
Civic Plus $44,740.00 
    $76,280.00 
 
Mr. Mitchell recommended the quote from Civic Plus as the lowest and best bid in the 
amount of $44,740.00 plus maintenance. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner asked if desotoms.info would remain intact.  Mr. Mitchell said 
there would be no changes to that web site.  He said that is not part of the project and 
that they offer a new website redesign in four years. 
 
Supervisor Gardner said there is a committee working on a new logo and asked if that 
logo would be added to the web site. In response, Mr. Mitchell said we thought we 
might get suggestions from them for the logo. 
 
Supervisor Gardner verified that Civic Plus is located in Kansas.  Mr. Mitchell said yes 
and they would send someone here to work on the web site. 
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee asked if the $8,000.00 would come out of the IT budget.  Mr. 
Mitchell responded yes. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to accept the recommendation by the IT Department and award the web site 
redevelopment project to Civic Plus at $44,740.00 as a one-time outlay of funds 
contingent on the Board Attorney’s approval of the contract and for the Smith, Phillips, 
Mitchell, Scott and Nowak Law Firm to present the County in the manner.  The motion 
passed by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------NO 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 

See Exhibit G.2 
 



___ 7 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

 
3.  Consideration for Ratification or Renewal of Recently Presented Agreements and 

Contracts 
 

County Administrator Michael Garriga said he read recently that Madison County had 
several Audit Department issues because of the handling of some of the county contracts.  
Mr. Garriga said in reviewing the handling of DeSoto County’s contracts, he found that 
the County had outgrown the prior departmental contract handling system and as a result, 
we now have software in place to manage the contracts in the Administration Office.  Mr. 
Garriga said we are currently in the process of verifying that all contract payments are 
accurately documented, approved and that payments are current.   
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner seconded the 
motion to approve the contracts and agreements including, lease agreements, interlocal 
agreements and other documents presented in Exhibit H.3 and to ratify and renew them as 
indicated.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:       
    

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 

See Exhibit G.3 
 
  

4.  Consideration of Road Maintenance Agreement between DeSoto and Tate Counties 
for County Line Road Maintenance 

 
Board Attorney Jody Neyman presented the proposed MOU for the County to perform 
road work on a portion of County Line Road between Smith and Alphaba Roads that lies 
in Tate County and is presently not maintained by Tate County. Mr. Neyman stated that 
under Mississippi Code section 65-7-77 a county can perform road work on a continuous 
road in a neighboring county if it is determined that the road cannot be properly 
maintained by the other county and Tate County has indicated that it cannot repair the 
road, and has no objection to Desoto County performing the road work. 
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee said the road is in terrible shape. 
 
Mr. Neyman said the Board has to make a finding that the road needs to be repaired and 
the other county has to state they cannot make the repairs pursuant to the statute and this 
MOU reflects that. 
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell said she looked at the road and it is difficult to tell which part is 
in DeSoto County and which part is in Tate County.  Supervisor Caldwell said the road is 
in very bad shape.  She said it is very bad for the school buses and the repairs need to be 
done. 
 
Supervisor Lee said this is a safety issue, and when he went to inspect the road one of the 
holes came close to knee deep and the road is very dangerous. 
 

  Supervisor Harvey Lee made the motion and Supervisor Jessie Medlin seconded the         
            motion to approve the proposed agreement with Tate County for DeSoto County to          
           maintain County Line Road contingent on the consent of the Tate County Board of            
           Supervisors.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:     
      

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 

 



___ 8 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

 
H.   NEW BUSINESS    

 
1. Environmental Services:  Proposed Sanitation Re-route by Waste Connections, Inc. 

 
Environmental Services Manager Ray Laughter introduced Stacey Michaels and John 
Schaefer of Waste Connections.  Mr. Laughter said shortly a reroute for sanitation pickup 
would take effect.  He said it would affect approximately 2,958 of the 11,829 
residents/units which is about 20% of the citizens.  It will affect four out of five districts. 
 Mr. Laughter said representatives of Waste Connections are here to explain how it 
would benefit the resident when the change is implemented in March. 
 
Stacey Michaels said that Waste Connections appreciated the business DeSoto County 
has given them and the opportunity to service the citizens of DeSoto County.  She said 
the proposed change is effective for the week of March 12th.  Ms. Michaels said the 
change is necessary for both efficiency and safety.  She said the routes were originally set 
by the previous service provider and Waste Connections kept those routes.  Ms. Michaels 
presented a map that showed the daily pickup schedules.  She said the communication of 
the changes in the pickup schedules would start in early March and mail outs are ready to 
be sent on March 1st or 2nd.  She said that they would also place stickers on the containers 
one week before the change to inform the people of the date change for service and they 
will also place stickers on the containers during the week of March 12th as well.   
 
Supervisor Bill Russell asked Waste Connections to send the Board an information sheet 
so the County offices can relay accurate information when they receive inquiries 
regarding the transition from County residents. 
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee asked Waste Connections to tell all of their people that they are 
doing a good job for DeSoto County, and he appreciated their hard work. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner said that the Waste Connections plan is great.  He also 
suggested using the media to communicate the information as well. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin said he wanted to caution Waste Connections about changing 
the routes again at a later date if this change does not work out.  Supervisor Medlin said 
that Waste Connections has assured him they would not come back for another change. 
 
Supervisor Russell thanked Waste Connections for their professionalism during the 
transition. 
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell said that Waste Connections said this change would make the 
pickup times more consistent. 
 
Supervisor Medlin said he was here when the County picked up garbage and then BFI 
took the account and that this is the best transition the County has ever seen. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion and Supervisor Jessie Medlin seconded the  
motion to approve the change in route pickups as indicated on H.2 for Waste Connections 
sanitation service.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:     
      

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 

  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
See Exhibit H.1 

2.  Permission to Advertise for Bids for State Aid Project No. SAP-17(12)M 
 

DeSoto County State Aid Engineer Tracy Huffman appeared before the Board of 
Supervisors and presented an overlay project on Fogg Road from Nesbit Road to Church 



___ 9 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

Road, and on Church Road from Highway 301 to Horn Lake Road, and on DeSoto Road 
from Highway 301 to Horn Lake Road.  He said the project is funded 100% with state 
aid funds. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked if these roads were scheduled for a while.  Mr. Huffman 
said yes. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner asked where the project is in relation to the ongoing projects 
on DeSoto Road.  Mr. Huffman said this overlay is west of that project for an estimated 
1.33 miles. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the 
motion to approve State Aid Project No.SAP-17(12)M and to approve the specifications 
by the project as recommended by State Aid Engineer.  The motion passed by a vote as 
follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------NO 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 

  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
See Exhibit H.1 
 
 

2. Office of Finance & Accounting 
 
a. Selection of County Depository 

 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin recused himself from discussion on the selection of County 
depository and left the room. 
 
Chief Financial Officer Tom Arnold said the County received six bids for the County 
depository.  Mr. Arnold said four banks bid to have all of the accounts, and those plus 
two others want to be available for award of investment of surplus funds.  Mr. Arnold 
said he is before the Board requesting them to approve all of the banks as a depository 
and to allow his office to check on questions on the four banks who bid for the award of 
all of the accounts before making a recommendation for the County’s main bank.  He 
reminded the Board that the County’s current bank is BancorpSouth.  He said the 
County uses the other banks for surplus funds. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell verified that they are not ready to recommend the lowest bid for 
the main depository in this situation.  Mr. Arnold said in the case of the depository, the 
highest rate is considered plus other factors.  
Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to approve accepting all bidders as follows as County depositories: 
 
BancorpSouth (Hernando) 
First Tennessee (Hernando) 
Trustmark National Bank (Hernando) 
BankPlus Bank (Hernando) 
Southern Bancorp (Hernando) 
DeSoto County Bank (Horn Lake)  
 
The motion passed by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------RECUSED 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 

  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
See Exhibit H.2.a 
 



___ 10 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

b. Supplemental Claims Docket 
 
Chief Financial Officer Tom Arnold, of the Office of Finance and Accounting, presented 
the supplemental claims docket to the Board.  Mr. Arnold read the items on the claims 
docket individually and the Board discussed these items. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner asked about the bill for RAYCO copier.  Mr. Arnold said this 
is for a copier in an elected office. 
 
Supervisor Gardner asked about the ATMOS bill for Grenada on page 52.  Mr. Arnold 
said that bill is for Judge Lundy’s office.  The other counties reimburse the DeSoto 
County their share of the bill. 
 
Supervisor Gardner asked about the Light Squared bill on page 53.  Mr. Arnold said this 
is for a satellite telephone for EMA. 
 
Supervisor Gardner asked about the Lexus Nexus bill on page 24.  Mr. Arnold said this 
is for background checks and outstanding fines in Justice Court. 
 
Supervisor Gardner asked why there are different cell phone providers.  Mr. Arnold said 
this Sheriff’s Department and Coroner use AT&T because of the coverage area of those 
carriers. 
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell asked why the Department of Road Management does not 
perform the County oil changes. 
 
Mr. Arnold said that is outsourced except for the Sheriff’s Department and a few others. 
 There are so many different vehicles it may not be a savings and may be too much for 
the Road Department to handle. 
 
Supervisor Caldwell asked about the bill for Dr. Wadsworth on page 40.  Mr. Arnold 
said that is for medical attention for a juvenile at the jail.  
 
In accordance with Section 19-13-31 and Section 19-11-23 of the Mississippi Code 
Annotated, Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell 
seconded the motion to authorize the Chancery Clerk to pay the bills as presented by the 
Chief Financial Officer.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:  
       

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
   

4.  Board Attorney:  Request Approval to Conduct Jailor Training at the Sheriff’s 
Department   
 
Board Attorney Jody Neyman said for the past few years the Smith, Phillips, Mitchell, 
Scott and Nowak Law Firm, has conducted training at the Sheriff’s Department for 
jailors. Mr. Neyman said, because his Law Firm is not counsel for the Sheriff’s 
Department, the firm is required to seek approval from the Board of Supervisors to 
conduct the Jailor Training, and last year he recalled that he thought the training session 
took approximately two or three hours. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell said he thought the cost of the training should come from the 
Sheriff’s budget. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner seconded the 
motion approve and authorize the Smith, Phillips, Mitchell, Scott and Nowak Law Firm, 



___ 11 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

to conduct Jailor Training at the DeSoto County Jail.  The motion passed by a vote as 
follows:        

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------NO 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 

 
 
5.  Consideration for Ratification or Renewal of Additional Agreements and Contracts 

      
Director of Administration and Procurement Vanessa Lynchard presented additional 
contracts for the Board’s review and approval for various departments as detailed in 
Exhibit H.5.  She said the entries from Fant’s Telephone have been determined not to 
need Board of Supervisor approval and should be removed from the listing. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner seconded the 
motion to ratify or renew contracts as follows: 
 

Contract Name Purpose  Exp. Date      Department 
City of Hernando-Storm water interlocal-storm water advisory-Hernando             9/5/2012 BOS 
City Of Horn Lake-Storm water interlocal-storm water advisor-Horn Lake 9/5/2012 BOS 
City of Olive Branch-Storm water interlocal-storm water advisor-Olive Branch 9/5/2012 BOS 
City of Southaven-Storm water interlocal-storm water advisor-Southaven 9/5/2012 BOS 
Town of Walls-Storm water interlocal-storm water advisor-Town of Walls 9/5/2012 BOS 
DeSoto County Civic Center  DC Civic Lease Agreement  BOS 
Alco Alarm DC DHS/Bldg & Grds DHS/Bldg & Grds. Alarm monitoring 8/23/2012 Facilities Mgt 
Matheson & Associates Olive Branch Food Ministry-Alarm Monitor 2/8/2013 Facilities Mgt 
Verdin Bells & Clocks Clock Tower 11/20/2012 Facilities Mgt 
 

The motion passed by a vote as follows:           
           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 

      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 

  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
See Exhibit H.5 
 
 

6.  Office of Procurement:  Roadside Herbicide Bid Revision – Vendor Withdrew 
Bid/Quote 

 
Procurement Director Vanessa Lynchard explained that after the award of the roadside 
herbicide bid, in connection with bid file number 12-156-011, Red River withdrew their 
bid on Outrider.  Therefore, the Office of Procurement recommends moving to the next 
bidders and awarding the bid to Helena Chemical and the first alternate of VM 
Distribution as detailed in Exhibit H.6. 
 
At the recommendation of the Director of Procurement, Supervisor Bill Russell made 
the motion and Supervisor Jessie Medlin seconded the motion to reconsider the award of 
Outrider on the roadside herbicide bid.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:  
         

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 

  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner seconded the 
motion to award Outrider on the roadside herbicide bid to Helena Chemical and to 
award first alternate on the product to VM Distribution.  The motion passed by a vote as 
follows:           



___ 12 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 

  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
See Exhibit H.6 
 

 
I.   EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

The executive session portion of these minutes is recorded under the portion of the minutes 
called “Executive Session”. 

 
 
J.  OTHER ISSUES 

 
1. DeSoto County Vehicle Use Policy 

 
County Administrator Michael Garriga presented the policy for use of DeSoto County 
vehicles.  Mr. Garriga said he reviewed the policy and under it the Board of Supervisors 
must approve who is authorized to take county vehicles home.  He said we need to see 
who was approved to take county vehicles home. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin said the Board needs to know if that policy is still applies. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell said when he worked in a private business, he had to be taxed on 
use of the vehicle from home to his office.  Supervisor Russell said we need to make sure 
we are compliant with the requisite tax laws for County employees that are taking county 
vehicles home. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Bill Russell seconded the 
motion to authorize the County Administrator and Road Manager to work together to 
compile a list of take home vehicles for the Board’s approval pursuant to the County’s 
vehicle use policy.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:     
      

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

2. District 3 Park Funds 
 

Supervisor Bill Russell said every year the Town of Walls requests money from the 
county for their parks maintenance program.   
 
Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner seconded the 
motion to move $6,000.00 from the District 3 Park Fund to the Town of Walls as a 
restricted allocation for the benefit of their parks.  The motion passed by a vote as follows: 
          
          Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
 

3.  State Aid Engineering Fees 
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked State Aid Engineer Tracy Huffman if the roads that were 



___ 13 02/21/2012 
J.M. 

presented for maintenance today were on the list when he became the State Aid Engineer. 
 Mr. Huffman said the plans were mostly complete when he took the position.  
 
Supervisor Medlin asked how the payment works with the State Aid Engineer if the 
previous State Aid Engineer drew up most of the plans.  Mr. Huffman responded that 
their engineering fees are 4.8% and the design fees would be paid to the previous 
engineer at 7.2%.  Mr. Huffman said the roads were left off of work because there was no 
state aid money left to do the work.  

  
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Bill Russell seconded the motion to 
adjourn the meeting until March 5, 2012 at 9:00 a.m.  The motion passed by a vote as follows: 
          

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 

 
 
 

THIS the 21ST day of February 2012, these minutes have been read and approved by the DeSoto 
County Board of Supervisors. 
 
 
 
 
 
       
       
   
 ____________________________________ 

Jessie Medlin, President 
DeSoto County Board of Supervisors 


